
Agenda 
City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, July 13, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, City Building, 320 West Central Avenue 

 
 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
 

II. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. June 8, 2022  Planning Commission Meeting 
 

 
III. Agenda Items 
 

A. Preliminary Review, Site Plan Review, western terminus Pinnacle Point Drive, medical office 
building for Mayfield Brain & Spine 
 

B. Planning & Zoning Text Amendment, Solar Energy Systems 
 
 

IV. Guest Comments 
 
 

V. Planning Commission and Staff Comments 
  
 
VI. Adjournment 
 



 
 
July 13, 2022                                      City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 1  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

Background Information & Staff Recommendation 
City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting 

Wednesday, July 13, 2022, 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, City Building, 320 West Central Avenue 

 
 

III. Agenda Items 
 

A. Preliminary Review 
Site Plan Review, western terminus Pinnacle Point Drive, medical office building for 
Mayfield Brain & Spine 

 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is based on an application filed by K4 Architecture, LLC, on behalf of Mayfield 
Brain & Spine Center, seeking preliminary review approval through the site plan review process to 
construct a 16,147-square foot medical office building on undeveloped land located at the western 
terminus of Pinnacle Point Drive. The subject property is located approximately 400 feet west of 
the intersection of Pinnacle Point Drive and West Tech Boulevard in The Ascent portion of the 
South Tech Business Park. The property currently has no address: property addresses are 
assigned by the Springboro Engineering Department later in the site development process. The 
site of the proposed medical office building is within the Montgomery County portion of Springboro. 
 
The submitted plans also include a surgery center; that portion of the proposed plan for the site is 
not included in this review. 
 
The subject property is zoned ADD-1, Austin Development District 1. The ADD-1 district was 
created to manage development of land in the South Tech Business Park. The ADD-1 was an 
outcome of the Austin Center Land Use and Development Plan, a long-range plan developed by 
the City of Springboro in cooperation with Miamisburg, Miami Township, the Montgomery County 
Transportation Improvement District (MCTID), and others, to coordinate development of land near 
the then-proposed Austin Boulevard interchange of I-75. The ADD-1 includes its own permitted 
land use, architectural, and other site development standards.  
 
Zoning in vicinity of the subject property is exclusively ADD-1. Adjacent land uses include offices 
(Shiver Security, Caesar Creek Software) and a medical facility (Dayton Children’s), all consistent 
with the ADD-1 zoning designation.  
 
Following the Planning Commission’s discussion at the July 11th work session, the Planning 
Commission may authorize this item to be placed on a future Planning Commission regular 
meeting agenda for formal approval of the site plan. The earliest date that could occur would be 
August 10th. No action by Springboro City Council is required on this agenda item. 
 
Staff Comments 
 
City staff has the following comments on this agenda item: 

 
1. Indicate lot coverage for site at building out. Maximum lot coverage for the ADD-1 is 85%. 
2. For final review and approval develop landscaping plan consistent with Section 1268(f)(4) 

including but not limited screening adjacent to road frontage on Pinnacle Point Drive and I-75, 



 
 
July 13, 2022                                      City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting   Page 2  
 Background Information, Staff Comments & Recommendations 

buffers adjacent to other properties including the proposed ASC site, building foundation 
plantings, and parking lot plantings. Also indicate existing vegetation 4 inches DBH and larger 
to be preserved as Planning Commission may grant a reduction in plantings required as 
mentioned above. 

3. Screen dumpster and mechanical systems consistent with Section 1268(f)(5) of ADD-1 
requirements. 

4. Signage to be consistent with Chapter 1281 of Planning & Zoning Code and Section 1268(f)(6) 
of ADD-1 requirements. Signage to be reviewed with Zoning Inspector separate from the site 
plan review process. 

5. Indicate location for bicycle parking. Contact City staff for minimum requirements. 
6. Indicate plans for sidewalks connecting to those to the remainder of South Tech/The Ascent. 
7. For final review and approval develop lighting plan consistent with Chapter 1273, Exterior 

Lighting, of Planning & Zoning Code, and Section 1268(f)(10). Plan contents to include but not 
be limited to photometric analysis expressed in foot-candles, minimum to maximum (no 
greater than 10:1) and average to maximum ratios (no greater than 4:1), fixture details 
including proposed architectural lighting. No lighting to exceed maximum 3500° Kelvin color-
temperature standard. 

8. Engineering Department reserves comments until detailed drawings are submitted. 
9. Please be advised that the Clearcreek Fire District utilizes the provisions from the Ohio Fire 

Code and the Ohio Building Code and that all hydrant components shall meet those of the City 
of Springboro Water works. 

10. Pursuant to Section 105.4.3 of the Ohio Fire Code. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant 
to ensure that the construction documents include all of the protection requirements and shop 
drawings are complete and in compliance with the applicable codes and standards. 
Construction documents reviewed by the fire code official in accordance with paragraph 
(D)(2)(a)(104.2.1) of this rule or construction documents approved with the intent that such 
construction documents comply with all aspects with the code. Review and approval shall not 
relieve the applicant of the responsibility of compliance with the code. 

11. Fire Department connections for all sprinkled buildings shall be with-in 75 feet of a fire hydrant 
on the public water system. All fire department connections must have a 5” Stortz connection 
with a 30 degree downturn and includes a cap attached by a cable or chain. Fire Department 
connections must be visible and unobstructed at all times. 

12. We will require the purchase and installation of a Knox Box at the main entrance of the facility 
before the completion of the building. 

13. All test of all systems shall be scheduled through the Springboro Building Department at (937) 
748-9791 48 hours prior to testing. The building department will contact the fire district and 
advise us of date and time of testing. The Fire Marshal or district representative will witness all 
testing. 

 
B. Final Approval 

Planning & Zoning Code Text Amendment, solar energy systems 
 
This agenda item is a follow-up to the discussion from the May 11th Planning Commission 
regarding amendments to Chapter 1276, Solar Energy Systems, of the Planning and Zoning Code. 
A memorandum and additional materials will be sent under separate cover to members of Planning 
Commission. 

 
 

The information contained in this report is based on material provided to the City of Springboro as of 
Wednesday, July 6, 2022 at 9:00 a.m.  





FUTURE ASC
BUILDING
16,000sf
1.94ac

PROPOSED MOB
BUILDING
16,147sf
2.31ac

D D D

D

D

D

I
N

C
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
V

A
N

A
T

T
A

D
a

y
t
o

n
,
 
O

H
 
4

5
4

5
9

5
7

0
 
C

o
n

g
r
e

s
s
 
P

a
r
k
 
D

r

P
h

o
n

e
:
 
9

3
7

.
4

3
8

.
5

6
5

0

F
a

x
:
 
9

3
7

.
4

3
8

.
5

6
4

5



PT
WAITING

XRAY
22'-4"x15'-0"

OFFICE
14'-0"x10'-0"

P.T.
STOR

10'-0"x14'-8"

WET
AREA

BULLPEN
17'-4"x10'-4"avg

CONF
14'-0"x14'-0"

MAIL
7'-0"x10'-0"

PREP
11'-8"x6'-4"

PREP
11'-8"x6'-4"

PROCEDURE
23'-8"x18-'4"

RECOVERY
7'-8"x9'-8"

ESI
WAITING

OFFICE
14'-0"X10'-0"STOR.

6'-8"x7'-0"

ESI
STORAGE
13'-0"x7'-0"

BREAK
24'-4"(avg)x23'-4"

CHANGE
5'-4"x7'-4"

IT
8'-8"x10'-0"

CHANGE
7'-4"x5'-4"

OFFICE
14'-0"x10'-0"

OFFICE
14'-0"x10'-0"

OFFICE
14'-0"X10'-0"

OFFICE
14'-0"X10'-0"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

TRANSCRIPTION
9'-8"x19'-4"

MEDICAL
ASSISTANT
22'-0"x23'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
9'-8"x12'-0"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

MEDICAL
ASSISTANT
22'-0"x23'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

JAN.
5'-0"x
7'-0"

ACTIVITIES
AREA

UTILITY
7'-4"x17'-0"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

EXAM
12'-0"x9'-8"

SCALES

SCALES

TRANSCRIPTION
9'-8"x19'-4"

16

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 842
SCALE:

16,147 SF

1/8"=1'-0"

FLOOR PLAN

ISSUE DATE:

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

FILE LOCATION: X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Design     PLOT DATE: May 16, 2022 3:10 PM

FILENAME: 21-2026 plan v02.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

20
20

:  
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

Mayfield - Dayton South

ADDRESS
05/16/22



3'
-4

"
6'

-8
"

1

T/FLOOR SLAB
ELEV. 100'-0"

1'
-4

"
5'

-8
"

9"

18
'-4

"

2

3

7

2

3

4

5

67

8'
-0

"

3

1. MASONRY VENEER 'TYPE C'
2. 4" CAST STONE WATER TABLE
3. BRICK 'TYPE B' IN 1/3rd RUNNING BOND PATTERN
4. 1'-4" TALL CAST STONE TRIM BAND, (1) 24" X 4" UNIT, (1) 24" X 8" UNIT,

(1) 24" X 4" UNIT
5. 24" x 8" CAST STONE TRIM BAND W/ BRICK 'TYPE B' ABOVE AS

NECESSARY UNDER COPING
6. METAL PANEL SYSTEM
7. E.I.F.S.
8. SIGN BY OTHERS
9. 6" CAST STONE WATER TABLE

NOTES THIS DRAWING:

BRICK 'TYPE A' :  GENERAL SHALE, GREYSTONE ROCKFACE, UTILITY SIZE
BRICK 'TYPE B' :  GLEN-GEHRY BRICK, EXTRUDED SERIES, CARBON

BLACK, UTILITY SIZE
MASONRY 'TYPE C':  ARRISCRAFT SHADOW STONE, SIERRA
CAST STONE WATER TABLE:  CUSTOM CAST STONE, WATER TABLE

PROFILE TO BE SELECTED, NATURAL WHITE
CAST STONE TRIM:  CUSTOM CAST STONE, OLIVE BUFF
MORTAR:  FLAMINGO BRIXMENT, C-57
METAL PANEL SYSTEM:  CLEAR ANODIZED
EIFS:  TBD

MATERIALS SCHEDULE:

3'
-4

"
6'

-8
"

T/FLOOR SLAB
ELEV. 100'-0"

1'
-4

"
5'

-8
"

9"

18
'-4

"

8

MAYFIELD
B r a i n  &   S p i n e

1

2

3

3

4

5

8'
-0

"

7 26

3

8

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 421

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

ISSUE DATE:

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

FILE LOCATION: X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Design\VOID     PLOT DATE: May 17, 2022 12:12 PM

FILENAME: 21-2026 elev v02 JRS.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

20
22

:  
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

Mayfield - Dayton South

05/16/22

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION



3'
-4

"
6'

-8
"

T/FLOOR SLAB
ELEV. 100'-0"

1'
-4

"
5'

-8
"

9"

18
'-4

"

1

2

3

3

4

5

8'
-0

"

2 7 6

3

1. MASONRY VENEER 'TYPE C'
2. 4" CAST STONE WATER TABLE
3. BRICK 'TYPE B' IN 1/3rd RUNNING BOND PATTERN
4. 1'-4" TALL CAST STONE TRIM BAND, (1) 24" X 4" UNIT, (1) 24" X 8" UNIT,

(1) 24" X 4" UNIT
5. 24" x 8" CAST STONE TRIM BAND W/ BRICK 'TYPE B' ABOVE AS

NECESSARY UNDER COPING
6. METAL PANEL SYSTEM
7. E.I.F.S.
8. SIGN BY OTHERS
9. 6" CAST STONE WATER TABLE

NOTES THIS DRAWING:

BRICK 'TYPE A' :  GENERAL SHALE, GREYSTONE ROCKFACE, UTILITY SIZE
BRICK 'TYPE B' :  GLEN-GEHRY BRICK, EXTRUDED SERIES, CARBON

BLACK, UTILITY SIZE
MASONRY 'TYPE C':  ARRISCRAFT SHADOW STONE, SIERRA
CAST STONE WATER TABLE:  CUSTOM CAST STONE, WATER TABLE

PROFILE TO BE SELECTED, NATURAL WHITE
CAST STONE TRIM:  CUSTOM CAST STONE, OLIVE BUFF
MORTAR:  FLAMINGO BRIXMENT, C-57
METAL PANEL SYSTEM:  CLEAR ANODIZED
EIFS:  TBD

MATERIALS SCHEDULE:

3'
-4

"
6'

-8
"

T/FLOOR SLAB
ELEV. 100'-0"

1'
-4

"
5'

-8
"

9"

18
'-4

"

MAYFIELD
B r a i n  &   S p i n e

1

2

3

3

4

5

8 262

8'
-0

"

9

3

8

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 421

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

EAST ELEVATION

ISSUE DATE:

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

FILE LOCATION: X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Design\VOID     PLOT DATE: May 17, 2022 12:12 PM

FILENAME: 21-2026 elev v02 JRS.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

20
22

:  
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

Mayfield - Dayton South

05/16/22

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION



FILE LOCATION : X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Rendering\     PLOT DATE: Nov 18, 2021-3:17PM

ISSUE DATE:
FILENAME: 21-2026 Renderings.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

 2
02

1:
  K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

Mayfield - Dayton South

11/09/21

SCALE: N.T.S.

Southeast Perspective



FILE LOCATION : X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Rendering\     PLOT DATE: Nov 18, 2021-3:17PM

ISSUE DATE:
FILENAME: 21-2026 Renderings.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

 2
02

1:
  K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

Mayfield - Dayton South

11/09/21

SCALE: N.T.S.

Southwest Perspective



FILE LOCATION : X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Rendering\     PLOT DATE: Nov 18, 2021-3:16PM

ISSUE DATE:
FILENAME: 21-2026 Renderings.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

 2
02

1:
  K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

Mayfield - Dayton South

11/09/21

0 16

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

842

SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

West Elevation

SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

North Elevation

0 16

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

842



FILE LOCATION : X:\2021 Projects\2021 K4 Architecture\21-2026 Mayfield Dayton South\Rendering\     PLOT DATE: Nov 18, 2021-3:16PM

ISSUE DATE:
FILENAME: 21-2026 Renderings.dwg

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T,

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 ID
E

A
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
S

IG
N

S
 IN

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D
 H

E
R

E
IN

, I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F 

K
4 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
E

, L
.L

.C
. A

N
D

 IS
 N

O
T 

TO
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
 IN

 P
A

R
T,

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T,

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 A

U
TH

O
R

IZ
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

.  
C

O
P

YR
IG

H
T 

 2
02

1:
  K

4 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

TU
R

E
, L

.L
.C

. A
LL

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
E

S
E

R
VE

D

555 Gest Street
Cincinnati, Ohio 45203
Tel: (513) 455-5005
Fax: (513) 455-5008

K4 ARCHITECTURE, LLC

ARCHITECTURE
+ DESIGN

Mayfield - Dayton South

11/09/21

0 16

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

842

SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

East Elevation

SCALE: 3/32"=1'-0"

South Elevation



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 1 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

City of Springboro 
320 West Central Avenue, Springboro, Ohio 45066 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Wednesday, June 8, 2022 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
Chair Becky Iverson called the Springboro Planning Commission Meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. at the Springboro 
Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 320 West Central Avenue, Springboro, Ohio. 
 
Present: Becky Iverson, Chair; Chris Pearson, Vice Chair, Robert Dimmitt, Mike Thompson, Mark Davis and 
John Sillies. Absent was Steve Harding 
 
Staff Present: Dan Boron, City Planner; Chad Dixon, City Engineer; Lois Boytim, Acting Planning Commission 
Secretary. 
 
Mr. Thompson motioned to excuse Mr. Harding. Mr. Davis seconded the motion. 

Vote: Dimmitt, yes; Sillies, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes; Davis, yes. (6-0) 
 

II. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. May 11, 2022 Planning Commission Minutes 
 

Ms. Iverson asked for corrections or additions to the minutes. There were none. 
 
Mr. Pearson motioned to approve the May 11, 2022 Planning Commission minutes. Mr. Dimmitt seconded 
the motion. 

 Vote: Sillies, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes; Davis, yes; Dimmitt, yes. (6-0) 
 

III.  Agenda Items 
 

A. Final Approval, Final Development Plan, The Springs PUD, Planned Unit Development, apartment 
component 
 
Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for formal approval of the final development plan for a portion of the 
apartment component of The Springs PUD, Planned Unit Development. The application was submitted by 
PLK Communities, Cincinnati. The property is owned by The Siebenthaler Company. This item was the 
subject of approval of a revision to the approved general plan at the April 13th Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 
As indicated in the submitted materials, the applicant is proposing to construct 168 apartment units on a 
16.05-acre site located on the northeast portion of The Springs PUD. The site is situated between The Falls 
apartment complex on the east, and the Waterside condominiums to the west. Both The Falls and the 
Waterside condominiums are also in The Springs PUD. The property has frontage on Springs Boulevard; 



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 2 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

access is also proposed from the east through The Falls apartments to Yankee Road as well as to the west 
through the Waterside condominiums. The northern property line for the site coincides with the Warren-
Montgomery county border. Lands to the north are within Washington Township.  
 
The 16.05-acre site was approved for apartment development as part of the general plan for what is now 
The Springs PUD in early 2002. A total of 305 apartments were approved at that time consisting of 30 10-
unit buildings and a 5-unit building including the management office, a clubhouse building including a pool. 
Part of that approval was replaced by Planning Commission’s April 13th action on the general plan revision. 
 
Later, two phases of apartment development were approved by the Planning Commission in the final 
development plan stage of the approval process, one each in 2002 and 2003, based on an application filed 
by the developer, Coffman Development, both as The Falls apartments. The northern tier of the apartments 
were reviewed and approved first, consisting of 15 apartment buildings and the clubhouse, with 15 
additional buildings on the southern tier. The phases were oriented east to west, with both phases crossing 
the utility lines that bisect the site and access across a set of underground utility lines. Coffman 
Development developed just the eastern portion of each phase along the Yankee Road side of the property 
beginning in 2005. Development of this portion of the site continued until 2010/2011 when the current 135 
apartment units—13 ten-unit buildings and one 5-unit building with clubhouse—configuration was arrived at. 
The Siebenthaler property was later split from the built portion of The Falls apartments. The 2002/2003 
Planning Commission approval to construct 170 apartment units on the site remains in effect. 
 
PLK Communities is proposing to construct 168 apartment units on the site. The proposal includes nine 16-
unit apartment buildings, three 8-unit apartment buildings, a clubhouse facility, and a number of stand-alone 
garages and dumpster enclosures. Access will be provided with a driveway connecting to Springs 
Boulevard. The revised plans indicate three potential access points: one to The Falls and in turn Yankee 
Road, and two to Waterside. PLK Communities has indicated their intention to develop the project in one 
section. 
 
Final development plan review and approval is the second stage of the three-stage PUD approval process. 
No action of City Council is needed on the final development plan. Record plan review and approval is the 
third stage of the approval process, however no record plan is required as the site has already been 
subdivided. 
 
Existing zoning in the vicinity of the site is PUD to the east, south, and west, all part of The Springs PUD. 
Zoning to the north is zoned PD-T, Planned Development Transition District, under the Washington 
Township Zoning Resolution, a district whose purpose is “…to allow for orderly growth and development 
Washington Township and abutting municipalities.” Existing land uses in the vicinity of the site include The 
Falls apartments to the east, St. Mary’s church to the southeast, the single-family residential component of 
The Springs to the south, to the west the Waterside condominiums component of The Springs, and to the 
north in Washington Township, Montgomery County, and the Yankee Terrace single-family residential 
subdivision. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
City staff recommends approval of the final development plan subject to compliance with the following 
comments: 

 
1. Provide plans and written documentation of two access points to the site. No Building Permits may be 

applied for before documentation is received. 
2. Relabel plans as final development plan, not site plan.  



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 3 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

3. Provide architectural elevation for the typical residential buildings on the site including materials, color, 
and scale, for inclusion on the final development record. 

4. Revise landscaping plan for compliance with Chapter 1280, Landscaping, of the Planning and Zoning 
Code: 
a. Landscape designer to work with staff to verify location and distribution of plantings satisfying site 

landscaping requirement.  
b. Increase size of Emerald Green Arborvitae to a minimum of 6 feet. 

5. Provide a photometric analysis in foot-candles verifying compliance with Chapter 1273, Exterior 
Lighting, of the Planning and Zoning Code for parking areas, drives, and walks. Chapter 1273 also 
applies to architectural lighting including wallpaks. 

6. Verify proposed lighting complies with maximum 3500° Kelvin color-temperature standard. 
7. Manufacturer information for the Lithonia RSX1 lighting is consistent with Chapter 1273 excluding non-

horizontal installation included in submitted materials. 
8. Provide details of proposed bicycle parking facilities; parking to comply with City standards for bicycle 

racks. 
9. Plans to be signed by the owner/developed at the final approval stage of the general plan review 

process. 
10. Provide complete site design and development standards for building placement and ancillary facilities. 
11. Provide storm water/detention calculations for review. 
12. Provide storm water Pollution Prevention Plan and provide mechanism for the storm water facility 

maintenance. Add silt fence along the south and west perimeter. 
13. Post office to review the central mailbox unit location 
14. Resubmit engineering construction drawings per city specifications. Sample drawings will be provided 

to the engineering consultant as an example. 
15. Provide utility general notes (water, sewer, storm) as well as design details. Revise the drawing to 

make it legible, as the text print is too small. 
16. Include water main, storm and sanitary sewer in same profile view. 
17. Provide water meter room in each building for city water department employee access. 
18. Fire hydrants to be American Darling B-52-B with 5” Storz connection. Water main to be class 52 

ductile iron pipe with minimum 54” cover. Also, locate existing 12” water valve on the south side near 
east property line. 

19. Provide street names (private). 
20. Provide dumpster enclosure details. 
21. Detain the storm water from the existing 42” storm pipe from the east per the original design of the 

apartment complex. 
22. Please be advised that the Clearcreek Fire District utilizes the provisions from the Ohio Fire Code and 

the Ohio Building Code and that all fire hydrant components shall meet those of the City of Springboro 
Water works. 

23. An “As Built” drawing showing as built location and elevations of all improvements shall be submitted 
prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. 

24. Pursuant to Section 105.4.3 of the Ohio Fire Code. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to 
ensure that the construction documents include all of the protection requirements and shop drawings 
are complete and in compliance with the applicable codes and standards. Construction documents 
reviewed by the fire code official in accordance with paragraph (D)(2)(a)(104.2.1) of this rule or 
construction documents approved with the intent that such construction documents comply with all 
aspects with the code. Review and approval shall not relieve the applicant of the responsibility of 
compliance with the code. 

25. Fire Department connections for all sprinkled buildings shall be with-in 75 feet of a fire hydrant on the 
public water system. All fire department connections must have a 5” Stortz connection with a 30 degree 
downturn and includes a cap attached by a cable or chain. Fire Department connections must be visible 
and unobstructed at all times. 



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 4 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

26. We will require the purchase and installation of a Knox Box at the main entrance of the facility before 
the completion of the building. 

27. One additional fire apparatus access road is required by the fire district due to the density and the 
potential for impairment of a single road into this complex. 

28. All test of all systems shall be scheduled through the Springboro Building Department at (937) 748-
9791 48 hours prior to testing. The building department will contact the fire district and advise us of date 
and time of testing. The Fire Marshal or district representative will witness all testing. 

 
Discussion: 
 
In attendance to discuss their application were Mick Oaks, PLK Communities, and Justin Verst, Viox & Viox. 
 
Mr. Oaks reviewed the plan for the Commission. No changes have been made to the application in the last 
sixty days. 
 
Ms. Iverson asked for questions or comments. 
 
Mr. Boron corrected the staff comment #9 to state, “Final Development Plans to be signed by the 
owner/developer”. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked if that was to ensure the owner understands the staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Boron answered yes. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked whether some of the staff recommendations had been worked through and whether 
they are shaved out before the final submittal. 
 
Mr. Oaks answered yes the recommendation have been worked through. 
 
Mr. Boron commented that staff works on the assumption that they will not have a perfect plan. Staff will 
look ahead and give advisory comments as they move forward. Some comments are forecasting 
engineering issues and building code review. The last two comments involve review by the fire department. 
 
Mr. Thompson asked whether the City then monitors compliance.  
 
Mr. Boron commented that staff works with the applicant to work through the comments.  
 
Mr. Oaks commented that he has been working with Elmer Dudas, City Engineer, and 75% of the comments 
have been worked through. 
 
Ms. Iverson called for a motion to approve the Final Development Plan, The Springs PUD, Planned Unit 
Development, apartment component with the change to staff comment #9. 
 
Mr. Sillies motioned to approve. Mr. Thompson seconded the motion. 

 Vote: Davis, yes; Sillies, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes. (6-0) 
 

B. Preliminary Review 
Final Development Plan, 150 Advanced Drive, Advanced Drive PUD, Planned Unit Development, 
addition to industrial building 
 



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 5 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

Background Information 
 
This agenda item is a request for preliminary review of a final development plan for the proposed expansion 
of the Alfons Haar, Inc., located at 150 Advanced Drive in the Advanced Drive PUD, Planned Unit 
Development. The application was submitted by Ferguson Construction, on behalf of Alfons Haar, Co., 
business and property owner. The expansion includes two additions, the larger being a 9,150-square foot 
addition on the rear (northeast) side of building to expand the shop floor. A smaller, 810-square foot addition 
on the side/south side of the existing building would house two Modula units that currently occupy the shop 
floor. This addition would extend above the existing roofline, up to 44 feet, which is permitted by code. 
 
The existing facility was originally approved by the Planning Commission in 2006 with the construction of a 
14,400-square foot building approved by the Planning Commission with provisions to expand the facility up 
to 25,400 square feet. The Planning Commission approved a 6,000 square foot addition in 2013 on the 
rear/north side of the building to bring the site to its current configuration. 
 
Adjacent uses include CBT to the north, Advanced Engineering Solutions to the south, and Hanover 
Products to the west on the west side of Advanced Drive, all located within the Advanced Drive PUD/Stolz 
Industrial Park. To the east is General Dynamics, accessed from South Pioneer Drive, which is zoned ED, 
Employment Center District. 
 
Staff Comments 
 
City staff has the following comments at this time: 
 
1. Provide color rendition of proposed addition. Indicate color match to existing structure. 
2. Indicate building population at build-out to determine off-street parking requirement. 
3. Provide lighting plan consistent with Chapter 1273, Exterior Lighting, of Planning and Zoning Code. 
4. Provide storm water/detention calculations. 
5. Provide storm water pollution prevention plan. 
6. The new expansion shall be tied into the existing sprinkler system. 
7. All test of all systems shall be scheduled through the Springboro Building Department at (937) 748-

9791 48 hours prior to testing. The building department will contact the fire district and advise of date 
and time of testing. The Fire Marshal or district representative will witness all testing. 

 
Discussion: 
 
In attendance to discuss their application were Brian Johnson of Alfons Haar, Inc. and Brandon Rose of 
Ferguson Construction.  
 
Mr. Boron reviewed the application for the commission. He commented that the use is compliant with the 
zoning code and meets the setbacks. There are a small list of staff comments. 
 
Mr. Pearson asked about the need for the 44” roofline. 
 
Mr. Johnson explained that it is a vertical storage unit, a “vertical lazy susan” which explains the need for the 
higher roofline. 
 
Mr. Boron commented that Mr. Rose can ask for a footer foundation permit in order to move ahead. Formal 
approval can happen as early as the July 13th meeting. He also commented the applicant should be aware 
of the storm water requirements.  



 

June 8, 2022                                    City of Springboro Planning Commission Regular                                   Page 6 of 6 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 
 VI. Planning Commission and Staff Comments 
 

Mr. Boron reported that the next meeting is scheduled for July 13th. 
 
Mr. Boron commented that a discussion of solar panels will continue at a later date. 
 

VII. Adjournment 

Mr. Thompson motioned to adjourn the June 8, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting at 6:21 pm. Mr. Davis 
seconded the motion. 
 

 Vote: Dimmitt, yes; Sillies, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes; Davis, yes. (6-0) 

 
 
 ________________________________________ 
 Becky Iverson, Planning Commission Chairperson 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 Dan Boron, Planning Consultant    Lois Boytim, Acting Planning Commission Secretary 

 

 


	2022 07 13 planning commission comments and background.pdf
	City of Springboro Planning Commission Meeting
	A. Preliminary Review
	Site Plan Review, western terminus Pinnacle Point Drive, medical office building for Mayfield Brain & Spine
	B. Final Approval
	Planning & Zoning Code Text Amendment, solar energy systems

	Mayfield Submittal.pdf
	Mayfield Plans.pdf
	2022-05-26_Austin West - Mayfield
	Sheets and Views
	PRELIM SITE PLAN


	21-2026 Plan
	21-2026 Renderings
	Sheets and Views
	Plan v02 24x36

	21-2026 elev v02.pdf
	EW elevation 24x36
	Sheets and Views
	EW elevation 24x36


	NS ELEVATION 24x36
	Sheets and Views
	NS ELEVATION 24x36



	21-2026 elev v02.pdf
	21-2026 elev v02 JRS-NW elevation 24x36
	Sheets and Views
	NW elevation 24x36


	21-2026 elev v02 JRS-SE ELEVATION 24x36
	Sheets and Views
	SE ELEVATION 24x36



	21-2026 Renderings.pdf
	21-2026 Renderings-Elev NW
	Sheets and Views
	Elev SE


	21-2026 Renderings-Elev SE
	Sheets and Views
	Elev NW


	21-2026 Renderings-persp SE
	Sheets and Views
	persp NW


	21-2026 Renderings-persp SW
	Sheets and Views
	persp NE




	21-2026 Elevations


	2022 06 08 Planning Commission Meeting.pdf
	Vote: Dimmitt, yes; Sillies, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes; Davis, yes. (6-0)
	Vote: Sillies, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes; Davis, yes; Dimmitt, yes. (6-0)
	III.  Agenda Items
	A. Final Approval, Final Development Plan, The Springs PUD, Planned Unit Development, apartment component
	Vote: Davis, yes; Sillies, yes; Dimmitt, yes; Iverson, yes; Pearson, yes; Thompson, yes. (6-0)

	B. Preliminary Review
	Final Development Plan, 150 Advanced Drive, Advanced Drive PUD, Planned Unit Development, addition to industrial building




